NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at the Jeffery Room,
Guildhall on Monday, 5 February 2007 at 6:00 pm.

M. McLean
Chief Executive

AGENDA

K= Key decisions
1. APOLOGIES

2 MINUTES

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

5 ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

COMMITTEES
None.
K.. 6. CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 2005  C.
(El) Stevenson

Report of Corporate Manager, Development and Building Control x 7360

and Environmental Health (copy herewith)

7. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

THE CHAIR TO MOVE:

“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”



8.
K. 9
K.. 10.
K 11.

SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA

Exempted Under Schedule
12A of L.Govt Act 1972 as

amended
Para No:-

GROSVENOR/ GREYFRIARS- PROGRESS (CPFSP) (3)

Report of Corporate Manager, Regeneration, Growth
and Community Development (copy to follow)

DALLINGTON GRANGE; PROGRESS OF POTENTIAL  (3)
AGREEMENT (CPFSP)

Report of Asset Manager (copy herewith)

WHEATFIELD ROAD SOUTH INDUSTRIAL UNITS AND (3)
LAND

Report of Asset Manager (copy herewith)

16- 18 ARCHANGEL SQUARE, CAMP HILL (3)
Item Withdrawn

<TRAILER_SECTION>

A5268

C.
Cavanagh
x 8461

S. Dougall
x 8177

S. Dougall
x 8177



Agenda jtem

Meeting Date:
Directorate:
Corporate Manager:
Cabinet Meeting Date

Agenda Status:

C e
q ' “, Ward/s
MPTON
CUNCIL Al
Name of Group: CABINET

5 February 2007

People, Planning and Regeneration
C Stevenson

5 February 2007

Public part of Agenda

Report Title

CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ACT
2005 - DOG CONTROL ORDERS

Key Decision

YES

1. Recommendations

ahove

1.That Cabinet considers the report and agrees in principie to the making of
the following Dog Centrol Orders:

{(a) A Fouling of Land by Dogs Order in respect of all land within the
Borough which is open to the air and to which the public have right of
access with or without payment.

(b} A Dogs on Leads Order in respect of cemeteries, nature conservation

areas, ecology areas and areas from which dogs are presently
prohibited unless on a lead under the Parks byelaws.

(c).A Dogs on Lead by Direction Order in respect of the same areas as 1

{d) A Dogs Exclusion Order in respect of children's playgrounds, fenced off
sporting areas, memorial sites and other areas of special sensitivity

Fif Templates Reponsiabines g4 (9 06



. 2. That the Officers prepare draft orders in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder- Loca! Environment prior to public consuitation on the proposals, and
that the matter then is formally referred to the Portfoito Holder for
consideration before final orders are made.

3. That the fixed penalty notice for offences under a Dog Control Order be set
at £80 reduced to £50 if paid within 10 days of issue

2. Summary

as a result of the Clean Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2005. The
report proposes the adopting of Dog Control Orders.

3. Report Background

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 introduced several
changes 1o legisiation related to dog controi for local authorities. These
changes include:

+ Repeal of the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996

. « Introduction of Dog Control Orders under Section 55 of the Clean
Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2005

» Repeal of Section 3 the Dogs Act 1906 (seizure of stray dogs by Police)

» An amendment to section 150 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

Details of the changes and the effect they have on the local authority are

listed below:

' DOGS (FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996

The Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996; which was used by local authorities fo

. prosecute dog owners for failing to remove faeces from designated areas was
repealed in April 2006 by the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act
2005.

Fr/Templawes: Reportst shinet (4 04 U6



- their geographical boundaries as being ‘no fouling areas’. Within these
designated areas, it was an offence to fail to remove dog faeces

The regulation citing the details of the repeal of the 1996 act stipulate that
where a loca!l authority designated no fouling areas under the 1996 Act, they
' can continue to enforce these areas despite the repeal, until they choose to
implement a Dog Control order made under section 55 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2006.

Northampton Borough Council adopted the Act and continues to enforce the
dog fouling powers until such time as the new control orders are in place. The
list of land designated by the council under the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act
1896 is attached at the end of the report.

DOG CONTROL ORDERS

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 introduced Dog
Control Orders (Section 55) to replace the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996.
Section 85 also provides for other wider dog control issues to be prescribed
as an offence in a Dog Control Order. These are:

a) Fouling of land by dogs and the removal of dog faeces

b} The putting and keeping of dogs on leads

¢) Putting and keeping of dogs on leads when directed to do so by an
authorised officers

d} The exclusion of dogs from land

e} The number of dogs, which a person may take on fo any land

Section &9 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act allows for an
authorised officer of the iocal authority to issue a penalty charge notice to any
person he believes has commitied an offence under a Dog Control order
covering the area.

The regulations provide appropriate exemptions for guide dogs and disabled
support dogs in relation to the offences of failing to remove faeces and
entering on excluded land.

' The procedure for making dog control orders is prescribed by regulations.
Before making an order the council must consuit by publishing a notice in a
local newspaper identifying the land, summarising the order and stating the
period within which representations and how they may be made.

The consuitation period must be at least 28 days and the outcome of the
consuftation must be taken into consideration before an order is made.
Once an order is made various publicity requirements including further
advertisement and signage must be complied with at least 7 days before the
order takes effect. A dog control order may be varied after it has been made.

P Terplates Repaon 15/ C b 2 09 O




: Dogs Act 1906 and Environmental Protection Act 1990
| The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 repeals section 3 of
the Dogs Act 1906 (seizure of stray dogs by the Police) Police are no longer

. responsible for the seizure of stray dogs. Equally section 150 of the

' Environmental Protection Act 1990 which relates to the delivery of stray dogs

. 1o the Police or Local Authority is amended to omit the Police from this
responsibility, leaving the local authority soley responsible for stray dogs. This
section will be enacted once funding arrangements for the local authorities

has been resolved and will be the subject of a future report.

4. Options and Evaluation of Options

Set out below are a range of options and recommendations for consideration.

Fouling of land by dogs and the removal of dog faeces

It is proposed that a dog control order be made under the new Act to apply to
all land which is open to the air and to which the public have right of access,
either with or without payment. This would include all areas of public
highways, all public open spaces and parks; all council owned housing
amenity land and all other areas to which the public have access.

The putting and keeping of dogs on leads

It is recommended that the following areas be listed as areas where dogs
should be put and kept on a lead.

o Cemeteries

¢ Nature conservation areas

» FEcology Areas

Consideration could also be given to designated specific areas in (flagship)
parks as areas where dogs should be kept on leads {(under the present parks
byelaws dogs are not allowed in ormamental gardens except on lead where
signs are in place). This would mean a reduction in the number of dog
exercise areas that are required as dogs would be permitied to be off lead in
other areas of the park.

' The puttin'q and keeping of dogs on leads, when directed to do so by an
authorised officer

Similarly to the fouling offence above, it is recommended that this offence be
extended to cover all land which is open to the air and to which the public
have right of access, either with or without payment. Authorised officers
would then be able to use their judgement as to the control of the dog by the

Fy Termpiates Reporis Cabingt D4 1M U6



Autharised officers would only be able to give this direction where it is
reasonably necessary to prevent a nuisance or behaviour by the dog likely to
cause annoyance or disturbance to any other person, or the worrying or
disturbance of any animal or bird.

The exclusion of dogs from land

it is recommended that the following area be considered for listing as areas
from which dogs are excluded.
» Children’s playground areas
» Fenced off sporting areas such as tennis courts and Astroturf pitches
s Memorial sites
It may be that there are other especially sensitive areas that should be added
to this list.

The number of dogs, which a person may take on to any iland

Advice in the guidance provided by the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) is that the maximum number of dogs that can
safely be controlled by any one person is six.

The Borough Council will follow DEFRA guidance and recommend that the
maximum number of dogs that can safely be controlled by any one person is
SiX.

Penaities for Offences under a Dog Control Order

The amount of the fine can be set by the Local Authority. The maximum level
of fine for a Bog Control Order Fixed Penalty is £80.00 with a minimum level
of £50.

if no amount is set by the council a default value of £75 applies.

An option is also available for council to discount the fixed penalty fine for
early payment. DEFRA guidance is that early payment is within 10 days of the
issue of the penally notice.

The Environmental Offences (Fixed Penalty) (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Regulations 2006 specify that the fine should not be discounted to below £50.

It is recommended that the fixed penalty notice be fixed at £80.

The maximum penalty on conviction for failure to comply with a dog control
order where a fixed penalty notice is not served or complied with is £1000.

Continue to Rely on Previous Leqislation

it would be possible for the Council not to make any orders under the new Act
and to continue to rely, at least in respect of dog fouling, on the Dogs (Fouling
af Land) Act 1996. However this is not recommended since it is unsatisfactory
in the long term o carry on enforcing legislation kept alive only under
transitional provisions. :

FiTemplates Repnnis/ Cabinet 82 09 06




5. Resource Implications {including Financial Implications)

AWOs, part of their work relates to the patrolling of areas and the issue of
fixed penalty notices in appropriate cases.

Neighbourhood Wardens are also authorised to issue fixed penalty notices.
Training costs. Suitable and sufficient in house training on the new dog
control orders would be necessary.

New Fixed Penalty Notices. New notices would have to be printed to refiect
changes to the legisiation being enforced and the range of offences.
Financial. The cost of advertisement in the local newspaper, consuitation and
all necessary signage. A public notice advertisement in the local press would
depend on size but would be in the order of £800. The cost of signage and
additional publicity could be in the region of £2000.

The current level of fine using the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 is £50.
Costs for implementation of this legislation can be borne within existing

6. Risk and Opportunity Issues

Risks. introduction of a wide range of dog control orders may be perceived as
being anti dog ownership.

Poar public perception of the council invoking the use of fines for financial
gain.

Lack of clarity between the local authority and parish councils. A parish
council may not make a Dog Control Order in relation to an offence on a
specified area of land if the local authority has already made an order in
respect of the same offence on the same land. It does not prevent a parish
council from making a Dog Control Order in respect of a different offence on
land that is already subject to a local authority order in relation to another
offence. Difference in orders in force around the council land area needs to be
easily understood by all.

Opportunity. Supports the cleaner, safer and greener agenda. Encourages
responsible dog ownership.

7. Consultees (Internal and External)

‘Internal | Street Care and Environment (Parks)

Consultative Group 16 Jan 2007- Issues were raised
concerning dogs on allotments and dogs to be kept on leads.
Response - The cumrent allotment agreement requires dogs to
: be kept on a lead at all times whilst on an allotment and for it
to be tethered on the plot holders plot. The agreement is

i currently being reviewed by the Street Care and Environment
manager. The proposed new agreement is seeking to prohibit

FIOFemphates/Boepons Cabinel G4 44 o




dogs from allctments on the grounds of dog fouling and
nuisance to other users. This will be subject to a separate

L report .

The other comment raised at the consuitative group was that
all dogs shall be kept on a lead at all times when out. No
response was available from the RSPCA but theirs and other |
websites state that all dogs require regular waiks and that they
should be kept on a lead near traffic and farm animals. The
RSPCA site says all dogs need to have time to run around and
stretch their legs. The proposal to keep them on a lead at all
times would not be in the best interests for the health of dogs
as it would prevent this. Therefore the recommendation
remains that dogs should be kept on leads in specified areas
only.

External

Northampftonshire County Council, Parish Councils

Responses from the following parish councils received.

Hardingstone PC. Clarification sought on some points
sought and given.

Upton PC. Letter received in respect of emptying of dog
bins, copy of letter passed to Parks section, Westbridge.
Also requested that order relating to dogs being kept on lead
apply to Upton Lane and Black Walk.

Woofton & East Hunsbury PC. Do not wish to have any of
the proposed new dog control orders applied to any land
within their parish. Wootton and East Hunsbury PC wish to
make their own dog control orders.

if this or any other parish council were to be excluded from
these orders it would be possible that there could be a wide
range of orders and level of fines across the Borough. This
would be confusing {o the public and make policing/
enforcement and advice and guidance very difficult. itis
recommended that all parish councils be included within
these orders.

Collingtree PC. Request the exciusion of dogs from
Collingtree playing fields with £80 fine.

FoTenmplaies Roperts Cabinet O 485 06




8. Compliance Issues

A: How Proposals Deliver Priority Qutcomes

Recovery Plan

None

 Corporate Plan

Make Northampton a cleaner, safer and greener place to live.

B: Other Implications

Other Strategies

J—

' Finance Comments

incorporated in report.

Legal Comments

Incorporated in Report

Crime and Disorder Issues

: None

Equality Impact Assessments

None

9. Background Papers

Title Description

Source

Clean legislation
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act

. 2005 a

DEFRA Guidance Guidance
CNEA
Implementation

HMSO

DEFRA

P Pemplates Repuors Cabaet 04 16 66




or Deputy
(Key decision only)

B. Lewis

Name Signature Date Ext.
Author 05/0107 | 7770

J Alfano Team Leader
Environmental Protection
Corporate Manager 25/01/07 | 7360
Director C Thomas 25/01/07 | 7868 |
Manitoring Officer }
or Deputy /3/‘0 L»«J_ - 7—9}' /a? 73>%
{Key decision only) S |
Section 151 Officer 26/01/07 | 7167

FE Pemplates Reports/Cabinet 11 190G



SCHEDULE 1
Land to be designated under Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996.
- All council owned land (parks, cemeteries, open spaces)
~  All carriageways with speed limits less than 40mph
- Footpaths and grass verges alongside designated roads
- Landscape areas within housing estates

At the reguest of Billing Parish Council

— OId Billing Road, parallel to Manorfield Road, Little Billing

- Path through Bellinge Ponds, Parish Council Adventure Playground and
continuation across Fishponds Road to A45 surrounding open space

— Bellinge open space

-~ The Leys open space

- Playing field and pocket park between Penfold Lane, Great Billing and
Great Billing Way

- KB11 through Ecton Brook and surrounding open space

- Linear Park, Ecton Brook

- Ecton Brook playing field

At the request of Great Houghton Parish Council
- Great Houghton playing field

— Cracknut Lane, Great Houghton

- Chiidrens piay area, Great Houghton

At the request of Hardingstone Parish Council

- Hardingstone playing field
- Open space surrounding Scouts and Guides Huts, Hardingstone

At the request of Wootton Parish Council

- The Green, Wootton
- Playing Fields, Wootton
- Wootton Spinney

At the request of Peterborough Diocesan Advisory Committee for the care of
Churches,

- All Anglican Church grounds

At the request of Northamptonshire County Council

- Barnes Meadow Local Nature Reserve and Countryside Stewardship

Agreement Area
- Riverside Conservation Park — Westen Mill Lane

i emplaies Reports Cabioet 0509 06



Agenda ltem 9

EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF
PARAGRAPH(S)3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

Document is Restricted



EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF
PARAGRAPH(S)3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda ltem 10

EXEMPT INFORMATION BY VIRTUE OF
PARAGRAPH(S)3 OF PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	6 Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (EI)
	9 Dallington Grange; Progress of Potential Agreement (CPFSP)
	Plan of Dallington Grange Allotments

	10 Wheatfield Road South Industrial Units and Land

